SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

MACKEREL COBIA COMMITTEE

Marriott Hutchinson Island Stuart, Florida

June 13, 2019

SUMMARY MINUTES

Mackerel Cobia Committee Members

Doug Haymans, Chair Steve Poland, Vice Chair

Anna Beckwith Jessica McCawley

Tim Griner Mel Bell

Spud Woodward Dewey Hemilright

Tony DiLernia

Council Members

Chester Brewer
Chris Conklin
Dr. Kyle Christiansen
LCDR Jeremy Montes

Art Sapp

Council Staff

Gregg Waugh
Dr. Brian Cheuvront
Cierra Graham
Dr. Mike Errigo
John Hadley
Kim Iverson
Kelly Klasnick
Cameron Rhodes
Christina Wiegand
BeBe Harrison

Other Observers and Participants

Martha GuyasRick DeVictorMonica Smit-BrunelloDr. Jack McGovernDr. Clay PorchKate SiegfriedDr. Wilson LaneyShep GrimesErika Burgess

Other observers and participants attached.

Mackerel Cobia Committee June 13, 2019 Stuart, FL The Mackerel Cobia Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened at the Marriott Hutchinson Island, Stuart, Florida, on Thursday, June 13, 2019, and was called to order by Chairman Doug Haymans.

MR. HAYMANS: I will call the Mackerel Cobia Committee meeting to order. The first order of business is Approval of the minutes. Shep, are we okay? Okay. The minutes are approved. Next, Rick, are you ready for some commercial and recreational catches? That was the first thing on the agenda, but we have to approve the agenda. Does anybody have anything to add to the agenda? Seeing as how we've got about four committee members, and that's me, and Steve is Vice Chair. Robert Beal is not here. Anna Beckwith, Mel Bell, Roy Crabtree, and I guess that's you, Jack. Tim Griner, Jessica McCawley, Spud Woodward, Rob is not here, Dewey is here, and Tony. Christina, are you here?

MS. WIEGAND: I'm here.

MR. HAYMANS: All right. I'm going to start over again. Is everybody good with the agenda? Okay. Is everybody good with the minutes? Okay. Rick, let's talk commercial and recreational landings.

MR. DEVICTOR: Okay. I will do the commercial landings, and then Mike Larkin is going to call in for the recreational landings. King mackerel, starting off, we have that on the screen there with updated information, and this is updated from what was in your briefing book, and so you can see historical landings of king mackerel there on the left-hand side, all below the ACL.

Then the current 2019/2020 landings, we have, for the Northern Zone and Southern Zone Season 1, and so 9.1 percent for Northern, Season 1 Southern is 39.2, and these are landings through June 10. Moving on down to Spanish mackerel, you can see what the historical landings have been since 2016, and current year Northern is 28.6 and Southern is 20.9, and we have some information there below the table showing when the Northern Zone closed and the Southern Zone closed in 2018 and 2019 and when that step-down was for Spanish mackerel.

Finally, moving on to cobia, these are preliminary landings of cobia, and, of course, we're still monitoring commercial landings and closing federal waters when the landing cobia quota is met, and we have moved regulations under the Atlantic Coastal Act, and so we still show this on our website, and so you can see what the landings are right now. They're at 29.3 percent for Atlantic cobia.

MR. HAYMANS: Thank you. Any questions on those? Seeing none, the next ones. Mike, can you hear us?

DR. LARKIN: I will go over the coastal migratory pelagics, and this is the same format as before, and so I won't go too much in detail, and I can just answer any questions, and so all of these have recently been converted over to MRIP, and so none of these are still in MRFSS. 2019 landings are preliminary, and the reason for that is we're waiting on headboat landings from November and December, and, currently, the landings are up to Wave 1 of 2019, and this is January and February, and that's with MRIP, and we don't have any headboat landings for 2019 yet.

In that paragraph, talking about post-stratification, that's just for -- We just make sure that, when we compile the data, we use the same areas that were used for the assessment. For example, with Spanish and king mackerel, we compiled the data from the North, Mid, and South Atlantic, and we compile the landings for those, and that will match the assessment, and that's how the ACLs are set.

Then, also, the last point is there, currently, we have switched over to a mail survey, but all of these landings are the phone survey, because that's how the ACL was set. They are based on the equivalent converted over to the phone survey until the ACLs are changed to the mail survey, and so this is using the equivalent to the phone survey data, if that makes sense, hopefully.

Then 2017 and 2018 preliminary landings, I actually excluded cobia from this. We're still going to provide the recreational landings for cobia on our website, but, if you guys were to request it, I can certainly add it back in, but, since cobia got passed to the Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission, they're measured there, but, anyway, these are the 2017/2019 preliminary landings of king mackerel and Spanish mackerel. You can see both of them are below their ACL. It's 31 percent for king and only 29 percent for Spanish.

Currently, what we have for 2018/2019, and so these have from a March to February season, and these are also currently below their ACLs, and then it's the same format as before. The gray is actually when it was monitored using MRFSS, and then the clear -- You can see, in 2017/2018, it switches from clear, and that's monitored under MRIP, and that's landings broken down by modes, charter, headboat, private, and shore.

This is the same figure that I showed you before, with the years on X-axis, and the Y-axis on the left is the landings, and the Y-axis on the right is the effort, the MRIP angler trips, which is in red, and then the orange is the headboat angler days, and those dashes there are the ACLs, and you can see that, since we've had ACLs for these species, they have been below the ACL.

Then, for Spanish, this is the same setup for MRIP, and you see the landings broken down by each individual mode, and then the same setup there, the same format with the figure, and you can see for Spanish here, you can see the ACLs in place, and they've all been below the ACL. That's it, and I would be happy to take any questions.

MR. HAYMANS: Any questions for Mike on the recreational landings? Seeing none, Mike, thanks very much for the report. No questions.

DR. LARKIN: Great. Thank you.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay. We're ready to move on.

MS. WIEGAND: Just in case you guys are having trouble finding the material, all of this is going to be under Attachment 2, and it's the Story Map that's linked right here, and so, if you click on this link, it will pop up all of the documents. This was sort of an experiment for staff, to see if maybe this is a better way to start presenting materials, and sometimes those decision documents can get a bit lengthy and dense, and so we'll see how it goes as we go through this committee meeting, but that's how you can access it.

MR. HAYMANS: So you have to be online to get to it. All right. Back on the 18th of April, we had an AP webinar, which I thought went very well. Ira, the AP Chair, is here to present the report from that, but I also thank Ben and Steve for being in the audience and being here last night and being here today to help us out as well.

MR. LAKS: The Mackerel Cobia Advisory Panel and the Cobia Sub-Panel met on April 18, 2019. We met via webinar, and the first thing we got into was an update on recent coastal migratory pelagic amendments, and we went over CMP 31 and CMP Framework 6. We then got into trip limits in Season 2 of the Southern Zone, and that goes from October through the end of February, and the fishermen are definitely concerned about the fifty-fish trip limit. You're unable to make a trip on that, and the economic harm is pretty tough on the fishermen, if you get bad weather and you can only bring home fifty fish. It's just a small trip limit.

The AP had several comments, and I will go through a few of the important ones here. It's incredibly important to get this emergency action through. This is an immediate economic pressure on these fishermen, to go through another fall and winter season without having enough fish. We do have the fish to catch, and we're just not able to do it at a fifty-fish limit. It's not a matter of not having the fish, but it's just, with a small trip limit, it's hard. We're a well-tracked fishery, and we're not going to go over our fishery, but that emergency action would really help these fishermen out, and it's just pretty tough on fifty fish at a six-pound average, or a five-pound average. The weather in the winter seems to be getting a little worse, and that reduces your weekly trips to begin with.

We also believe that the seventy-five fish is a good buffer between the work that will be done on CMP Framework Amendment 8, and it will give us a good datapoint to show what seventy-five fish will do and where we need to be from there, and we do have an assessment that will be completed shortly, and we can move forward with that, and that will definitely help to see where we need to be in the future, along with if we did get the seventy-five fish, to see.

We made a motion that we recommended that the council consider an emergency action to raise the trip limit south of the Flagler/Volusia line to seventy-five fish for the 2019/2020 season, and that motion was approved nine in favor and two opposed. We also recommended and made a motion that the council continue work on Framework 8 and consider previous public comment on possible trip limits while working on that amendment. Are there any questions?

MR. CONKLIN: I am not on the committee, but they voted nine in favor and two opposed, and why were people opposed to that?

MR. LAKS: Christina can --

MS. WIEGAND: One thing I do want to address with these votes is doing AP meetings by webinar is a newer thing for us. We tried it last year with Spiny Lobster, and there is a very small number of spiny lobster fishermen on the AP, and so it was easy to sort of say shout-out which way you're voting. With the Mackerel AP, it's quite a bit larger, and we were torn on how to do it, and we didn't want to do a roll call vote every time, because that would drag out the AP meeting, and we didn't want to just have these guys shouting out and not knowing who was voting what, and so we had them raise their hands on the webinar, and you guys can see it up here, actually, and this --

Well, I am the organizer, but you've got the little hand-raise button on your webinar, and we tried to do it that way. How well that was working was a little iffy.

We had a couple of instances where people would speak in favor and then be voting against, and so we would be messaging them and trying to get some clarification, and I will say, as someone who was listening to the webinar, I did not hear much comment against this, though there were two people who voted opposed, and so part of that could be the learning curve that comes with trying to do an AP meeting via webinar, both on the AP members part and on staffs part, about how to sort work things like motions.

MR. LAKS: We then moved into the Atlantic Spanish mackerel commercial fishery and the closures that are occurring. The AP felt that the participation in the commercial Spanish mackerel fishery has increased substantially, and it's an easy fishery to get into. They felt that, if there's a limited amount of fish, there needs to be a limited amount of fishermen. It's just really getting to be a problem, with so much effort coming in, that you're having user group conflicts, and you're shutting down the ACL sooner, and the AP really felt strongly about looking into some sort of limited entry into the fishery.

There was also quite a bit of conversation about a gillnet endorsement and trying to have a limited entry in the gillnet fishery, because, of course, that would make the problem worse, if we had more gillnetters, because they're going to take higher fish, and we're going to close the ACL again faster, and so we definitely were concerned about an expansion in the gillnet fishery.

A couple of things also are that we wanted to ensure that the fishery stayed open in state waters, and there's also some concerns about the recent recruitment, based on the SEAMAP data coming in, and, if we're going to have a recruitment problem and increasing fishermen, that's even going to make things worse in the future, and so, just to reiterate, we're looking for some sort of limited entry program, definitely either an endorsement or a limited entry in the gillnet fishery, and we recommend the council -- We made a motion to recommend that the council look into ways to manage effort in the commercial Spanish mackerel fishery, including limited entry and working with the states. That motion was passed eight in favor and two opposed. We also made a motion to recommend that the council consider a gillnet endorsement for the Southern Zone with qualifying criteria, and that motion was approved with eight in favor and one opposed.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Ira, just so I understand here, we're talking about the request is really two different limited-entry programs, one very specifically a gillnet endorsement just for that Southern Zone and then one overall for the whole fishery, and is that right, or am I not understanding how you voted?

MR. LAKS: That's correct. The fishermen were very concerned about all facets of the fishery having an expansion in it, and so they were looking for that. We then got into the Coastal Migratory Pelagics Framework Amendment 7, which is the Gulf group cobia that's managed by the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council, and there were some concerns, and there were some suggestions, like maybe this council should be consistent with Florida's regulations, but, all in all, we thought, at this point, since there's either an assessment, I believe, getting ready to start, or it has started, that -- We made a motion to recommend that the council wait until the stock assessment is done before we move ahead with anything on that.

After that, we had Julia Byrd come in and provide us with an overview of the process that will be used to update the research priority document for the citizen science, and I believe she even got some volunteers from our AP to help her out with that.

We then moved on to Other Business. In Other Business, we talked about that there needs to be a comprehensive look at the mackerel fishery. It's a very important fishery, and I know that, oftentimes, issues come up, and they come up quickly, and we just never seem to have enough time to resolve them, and they just seem to piggyback on each other, and so, maybe if we can be a little proactive in the future, we can resolve some of this.

The king and Spanish mackerel fisheries are some of the most important fisheries in the South Atlantic, and king mackerel is the most valuable commercial finfish fishery, and Spanish mackerel is the third-most valuable. In the recreational sector, Spanish mackerel and king mackerel have the second-highest and third-highest directed trips, and, because of these reasons, the king and Spanish mackerel fisheries are the backbone of other fisheries in these areas right here, and we couldn't survive without king mackerel or Spanish mackerel, especially in this area, and I presume up and down the coast.

It's extremely important that the council prioritize time for a full discussion of the future of the king and Spanish mackerel fisheries, and we would love to see some sort of port meetings up and down the coast in different places to discuss where this fishery needs to go. We haven't discussed recreational trip limits, and we need to continue to discuss commercial trip limits, and we need to have just more information and input from the public. Again, this is a very important fishery that seems to not always get the attention as the dreaded other fisheries, and we would appreciate the council looking into doing something more comprehensive to look into the mackerel fishery, something along the lines of what you did with the vision process with snapper grouper.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Another question for Ira. Help me understand here. It sounds like you're suggesting a visioning process along the Atlantic coast, in the South Atlantic Council's jurisdiction, but it just seems odd to me to embark on this process without talking to the Gulf about both king and Spanish mackerel, and I'm just not sure that the Gulf is going to be in the same place as where we are on the Atlantic, and I just have some concerns about this. I'm afraid that some of the things that we want over here on the Atlantic aren't going to be supported in the Gulf, and I don't want people to get all excited about what we want over here, and then they're disappointed when they hear what the Gulf folks want, and I just -- Did you all discuss the fact that there is this Gulf component to these fisheries and how that would play in here?

MR. LAKS: Well, we were slightly limited on time, but we did have some discussion that we wanted to, in future AP meetings -- I know we have liaisons from the Mid-Atlantic in our mackerel, and especially since it's a joint plan with the Gulf, that we feel that either we need to send someone to their AP, advisory panel, when they have a meeting, and they need to send someone to ours, to have a better dialogue between the two groups.

It's to our understanding too that some of these issues, such as recreational bag limits and commercial trip limits, aren't really dependent on the Gulf, that these stocks are managed by us, and that we could set trip limits, and we can set bag limits on our own, because it doesn't affect their ACL, but I could be wrong on that. That's just the understanding that I had.

MS. GUYAS: I think a lot of the actions that the South Atlantic takes, if you take actions on some of the stocks that are -- I mean, it's a joint management plan, right, and so -- I think there are some things now, Jack, that the South Atlantic Council can do independent of the Gulf, and is that right? If it's like an actual amendment, it's got to go through both councils, and we've had significant hurdles with that in the past, let's just say, with some of the requests that you guys have had with the Gulf, especially with king mackerel and the traveling fishermen issue.

MR. HAYMANS: I don't want to take up a ton of time on this part, because we've got three actions and about forty-five minutes to go through them.

MR. SAPP: I am going to be real quick, I promise, but I was confused as to -- Is the AP asking to look at -- I mean, in the recreational sector, we're at two fish per person right now. Are we looking to put a cap, like a boat cap, bag limit? Is that what we're asking, two fish per person with a cap of ten, whichever is less?

MR. LAKS: We're not really asking for anything specific, but we just have never really addressed any of these issues and reached out to the public to see what they want, and we just feel it's time that you do something comprehensive to reach out into different areas, just to get a feel of the public of how they would like to have the fishery.

MR. SAPP: Thank you.

MR. POLAND: I've got some further comments on this, but, since we're talking about port meetings and stuff, I mean, from the Northern Zone, I feel like we would definitely be interested in maybe conducting a few port meetings in North Carolina and north, just to get some more information of what's going on, specific to our Spanish mackerel issue, but I am sensitive to Jessica's point and also that we've got the Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission to consider too, and so, I mean, there are a lot of players in this management.

MR. BELL: I listened to the whole meeting and all, and I think -- I understand what Ira is saying, and we spent an awful lot of time, as a council, visioning snapper grouper and all, and that's very important to us, but these are important fisheries as well, and just whether it's a -- It doesn't necessarily have to be a formal visioning process, and I understand that we don't want expectations to necessarily be raised too high, but certainly some sort of just strategic thinking, through port meetings of whatever, and I think they're kind of wanting to feel some of the same love and focus, and they are important fisheries, and you're right, and so however we do that, and I get what you're wanting to accomplish, I think.

MR. WOODWARD: I agree, and I think it's time that we do something, and it doesn't have to be anything as labor-intensive as the snapper grouper visioning process, but I think -- I know our meetings are very full, but we move our meetings up and down the coast, and devoting some block of time, evening or part of the day or whatever, to invite the people who have the concerns to come in and share those concerns.

I just know, from a recreational standpoint, king mackerel fishing has changed a lot, in terms of what people expect. I mean, you've got a lot of folks now that go king mackerel fishing just for the thrill of the catch, and they don't even bring the fish in anymore, and so it's a different world than it was when a lot of this was developed and implemented, and so I think it would be well

Mackerel Cobia Committee June 13, 2019 Stuart, FL

worth our time to invest some effort in getting a direction on where to go, instead of sort of piecemealing things and fixing each little problem as it arises, if we can do something strategic, and I think it would be well worth our time.

MR. HAYMANS: I think it's probably worthwhile to make it a direction to staff or something, so that, at our next Mackerel Committee meeting, it becomes a topic of discussion. I don't think we're going to be able to plan a visioning process right now, and it's duly noted that the AP wants to see that happen, and maybe we can devote a block of time to how much of that, and I think it's important that we perhaps meet with the Gulf to actually find out what the Gulf does want, so that we're not guessing all the time, but Martha can tell us what the Gulf does want.

MS. GUYAS: Well, yes. I mean, it depends on what fishery we're talking about here, right, and so king mackerel versus Spanish mackerel. I mean, we have -- Similar to the issue that you guys have between Florida and North Carolina, we have different things happening in different parts of the Gulf and different feelings about what's happening in different parts of the Gulf, depending on where you're sitting, and so I think it's probably a good idea that the councils work together.

At what point we start working together on this, I don't know. It might be better for you guys to figure out exactly what you want, and I don't know what that looks like, if it's like a giant AP meeting or if it's a dual council meeting, and we've had those before, to -- I don't know what level of success I would describe them as, because I feel like we agreed on nothing, but I feel like we need to start working together before we get to that point, at least, so that we at least understand where each other are coming from.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay. Thank you, Martha.

MR. WOODWARD: Do you need something formal for staff direction? Do you need something formal?

MR. HAYMANS: That's all we need.

MR. WOODWARD: Okay.

MR. LAKS: I don't think we were exactly asking for a visioning process, but a good look anyway, and so the other last motion we made had to do with the bag limit sales, and the AP recommended that the council does not consider for-hire bag sales for any managed species. They did, however, say, if for-hire sales are allowed for one species, they should be allowed for all the species, and that motion was approved ten in favor and one abstained. That concludes the report.

MR. HAYMANS: I have asked Ira to stay up here as we go through these next three things, if there's questions, and he's here, and Art is from south Florida as well, which most of this is central and south Florida. All right. We have three things we're going to look at. There's an emergency action, Framework 8, and then a Spanish mackerel update and kind of where do we go from there. I will turn it over to Christina to lead us through an emergency action request.

MS. WIEGAND: I won't belabor the point too much of why we're considering emergency action for the king mackerel trip limit in the Southern Zone. I think public comment last night made it pretty clear, as well as Ira's discussion of the AP report. What I really want to go over is the

criteria for an emergency action, so that these are the things you guys can be thinking about while you're discussing whether or not you would like to request emergency action.

For the purposes of the Magnuson-Stevens Act, defining an emergency requires, first, it to result from recent, unforeseen events, or recently discovered circumstances, and it must present a serious conservation or management problem in the fishery, and it can be addressed through emergency regulations for which the immediate benefits outweigh the value of advance notice.

Then, in addition to meeting all those criteria, there also has to be justification for the emergency action, and it has to be justified under one or more of the following situations, and the first is ecological, which doesn't necessarily apply to this situation, and you have economic, and so to prevent significant, direct economic loss or to preserve a significant economic opportunity that otherwise might be foregone, or social, to prevent significant community impacts or conflict between user groups, and then public health, which, again, does not necessarily apply here.

Then I've got just a couple of things for you to consider. This side pane right here is what the king mackerel trip limits will be upon final approval of CMP Framework 6, which the proposed rule has published, but the final rule hasn't published yet, and so these Season 1 trip limits aren't in place yet, but, once they are in place, this will be the current situation. For Season 2, which is what this emergency rule would address, right now, south of the Flagler/Volusia County line, you've got a fifty-fish trip limit from October 1 to January 1, and then, in February, if less than 70 percent of the quota has been caught, that bumps up to seventy-five fish, and so that's where things stand in Season 2 currently.

You also might want to consider your National Standard Guidelines, National Standard 5 for efficiency, and you've got cost-risk benefits and also impacts to communities, and then you will want to consider where the commercial king mackerel quota has been, and it hasn't been met in recent years, and landings have increased a little bit, post-Amendment 26, but, like Ira said, fishermen are indicating that they're not making enough profit. They can cover the cost of a trip, but they are not making any profit after that.

Here are your landings for the last few years, and, as you can see here, they have been a little below 50 percent, or right at 50 percent, of the quota, and, given that the commercial king mackerel landings haven't been met in recent years, it's unlikely that a seventy-five-fish trip limit is going to cause them to have a shorter season, and, regardless, accountability measures are still in place that would prevent any overfishing from occurring.

Then, just to put some perspective on how much money we're talking about here, I did a real quick and dirty analysis, and I took the average ex-vessel price for king mackerel in the Atlantic Southern Zone from the 2000/2001 season through the 2015/2016 season and just averaged it, to get an average price per pound, and multiplied that by the amount of quota that's been left on the table the last few seasons, and that's been, on average, about \$3.8 million left on the table. That's where things currently stand in the king mackerel fishery, and I will open it up for discussion of possible emergency action.

MR. HAYMANS: I am going to give it back to Ira for just a -- I asked him for the elevator speech for exactly why this is being asked for.

MR. LAKS: When Amendment 26 was passed, the fishery actually went through a stock change. We actually had Atlantic fish, and the Gulf was given more fish, and we were given different fish, and were actually fishing on now the Atlantic stock, but we used to be fishing on the Gulf stock, and I don't want to get all into that, but it was hard to predict market forces and where this would all flesh out.

There is more fish hitting the market at the time we're fishing that. Therefore, the price per fish went down, and so the fifty fish no longer allows us to make a profitable trip, and that was just hard to anticipate, when you have -- If we could anticipate the market, we would all be rich, and so it was just hard to do at the time.

MR. HAYMANS: Thank you. What this emergency action is requesting is going from fifty fish to seventy-five fish, or roughly an additional 240 or 250 pounds, during Season 2.

MR. LAKS: Yes, and that all depends on the size of the fish. Our fish in the winter can average anywhere from five to ten pounds. On a five-pound trip, it's 125 pounds.

MR. HAYMANS: All of this is based on 9.8 pounds, I think, or nine-point-something, but okay.

MR. BELL: That's assuming that the market conditions stay the same. If you've got that much more product, than you can turn a profit, I guess, is how you came up with that.

MR. LAKS: Yes, and I allow -- With expenses going up and more fish hitting the market at that time, which they hadn't before, and getting a little less money, it allows you to make a profitable trip.

MR. SAPP: We were spoke to by a very large quantity of folks here yesterday, and they were unanimous in their wish and desires, and is there any chance that we can possibly -- I feel like there is -- I am very willing to support these fellas, and I feel like most of the folks I've talked to have said can we potentially hustle this along.

MR. HAYMANS: That's the very point of the emergency action.

MR. SAPP: I mean, like even right now.

MR. HAYMANS: When we say that this is what we want to do, and we kick it straight over to NMFS. It's an emergency action, and we'll try to get it in place by October, Season 2.

MR. WOODWARD: Mr. Chairman, I have a motion for us to consider, if you will accept it, and hopefully I can get a second.

MS. WIEGAND: I have a draft for you, if it would help.

MR. WOODWARD: Okay. I have one, too. I move that we request emergency action for Atlantic king mackerel to raise the current fifty-fish trip limit to a seventy-five-fish trip limit south of the Flagler/Volusia County line for Season 2, October 1 through the end of February.

MR. HAYMANS: If you will finish. You didn't read it all.

MR. WOODWARD: For the 2019/2020 season.

MR. HAYMANS: Thank you. Mel is the seconder.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: First of all, I thought Christina did just a fantastic job telling you what the NMFS policy is for emergency rules, the emergency criteria and the justification and all that, and so I don't have to go over any of that, which I was prepared to do. To do an emergency action, which the Magnuson Act allows, for real specific emergency kinds of situations, because you have to have a record to justify it, because it limits the public participation in it, and you normally don't have a comment period or anything like that.

I think, when you look at particularly Table 1 in Framework 8, it shows you that, since Amendment 26 was effective, and I think that final rule was effective May 11 of 2017, you've had two fishing seasons in which the Amendment 26 process was set up, where you have Season 1 and Season 2 for this southern portion, and, if the Season 1 quota isn't caught, it rolls over into Season 2, and you can see, in Table 2, for two years, since Amendment 26 was put into place, they certainly haven't caught the quota, and this fifty fish is limiting them, and you've also heard the discussion about the economics, and Christina just talked to you about the amount of money left on the table, so to speak, but the economic justification for this rule I think is there too, and so I think, under the Magnuson Act, as well as the Fisheries Service policy, you have got a pretty good record, I think, to justify an emergency rule.

MR. HAYMANS: I greatly appreciate you clarifying that record for us. That was wonderful. Do you think there is the need for any additional clarification or justification?

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Well, certainly if anybody wants to talk, and I am certainly not going to chill anybody's conversation on this or support of it, but I think you've developed a pretty good record, and you've had public testimony for a least a couple of days, off and on, about the need for it and the support of it by the fishermen.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay. Is there any other justification or any other discussion? **Seeing none, any opposition, reserving the right to -- We're not in Full Council. All right. The motion passes with one objection, understanding why, to reserve your right. Okay.** All right. That takes care of the emergency action, and now let's move over to Framework 8 and Christina.

MS. WIEGAND: All right, and so Framework 8 is the amendment that is going to look at permanently adjusting the Season 2 trip limits, and, again, I'm not going to go over all of the reason that we're moving through this amendment, as I think it's been pretty well said, and so here are the regulations currently. These are the regulations that were put in place under Amendment 26, and you've got a 3,500-pound trip limit year-round north of Flagler/Volusia and then fifty fish in March, seventy-five fish with a step-down April to September, fifty fish October to January 31, with a step-up in February.

Prior to Amendment 26, and this is sort of key part, in Season 2, which the way Season 2 is written now is October through the end of February. Prior to CMP 26, it was November 1 to March 31,

and there was no trip limit in Season 2, effectively, for these guys prior to implementation of Amendment 26.

You all will remember Framework 6, and this is the amendment that you had worked on previously, and you passed this amendment, and it's currently undergoing rulemaking, and this amendment only addresses trip limits in Season 1. What it did was it bumped up the March trip limit to seventy-five fish south of Flagler/Volusia and then, off of Volusia County only, it brought them up to 3,500 pounds from April 1 to September 30, and so essentially back to what it used to be prior to Amendment 26. This amendment, Framework 8, will only look at Season 2.

There is only one action in this meeting, and so what we need for you guys to do is review the alternatives that we have in here, and staff designed them based on public input that you all received, as well as input from the AP, and then approve them for analysis. This is the possible amendment timing, and this is the fastest it could move, and I put this in here just to illustrate why emergency action was needed, and there's no way to get this framework amendment through by October of this year. The soonest we can get it into place is January of 2020, but, given the emergency action decision you all have made, there is not quite as much pressure to rush it, as long as we can get it into place by October of next year.

I will start with the purpose and need statement. You will see that this looks familiar, and it's very similar to what was in Framework Amendment 6. The purpose is to modify the commercial trip limit for Atlantic king mackerel in the Atlantic Southern Zone during Season 2, October 1 to the end of February, and the need is to provide a commercial trip limit sufficient to support fishing activity and revenue opportunity while constraining harvest to the annual catch limit and providing for year-round access.

MR. HAYMANS: You all heard that, and this is identical to what was in Framework 6, and so is there any need to change or edit or amend the purpose and need? Everybody is okay? Okay. Do we have a motion to approve?

MS. MCCAWLEY: So moved.

MR. HAYMANS: Motion by Jessica and a second by Steve. Any additional discussion? **Any opposition? It's approved.** Let's move into the actions.

MS. WIEGAND: All right, and so here is your no action, and it looks a little funny right now, because Framework 6 hasn't been implemented. Once Framework 6 has been implemented, we'll adjust those so that they show the effective trip limits, and so just focus on Season 2, because that's what we're changing with this amendment.

Again, no action would be fifty fish October to January 31 with a step-up to seventy-five fish if less than 70 percent of the Season 2 quota is landed. For Alternative 2, we would change the trip limit from October 1 to January 31 from fifty fish to seventy-five fish with a step-up to 100 fish in February. For Alternative 3, it would be 100 fish October 1 to January 31, with a step-up to 150 fish. Then, under Alternative 4, it would be 150 fish October to January, and then, in February, a step-up to 175 fish.

Just a few things to consider. Again, the king mackerel catch limit has not been met in recent years. They have averaged right around 50 percent, and, to give you guys a little bit -- There has been some discussion about the poundage limit, like it is elsewhere in the Atlantic and in the Gulf, versus a per-fish trip limit, and so, to give you guys sort of an idea of what these number of fish trip limits were equating to in pounds, we looked at the Trip Intercept Program, and, looking at Season 1 and Season 2 average weights, we came up with an average weight per fish of about 8.9 pounds, and that's a rough average, and so I've got a table here that shows you what poundage you're at at fifty fish, seventy-five fish, 100 fish, et cetera, so you can line up those poundages with the alternatives.

It's also possible that you might want to consider changing the step-up. Right now, in February, if it's less than 75 percent, it bumps up, and you could consider changing that to a step-down instead, if that was something the committee was interested in doing, and you've heard all of the advisory panel recommendations, and so what I need you to do is review the suggested actions and alternatives and approve them for inclusion in this amendment, if there are any modifications.

MR. HAYMANS: I was a bit dyslexic earlier, and I said 9.8, and it's 8.9. I am going to throw something out, and I heard a few fishermen say it, and Ira and I talked a little bit about it. It's 3,500 pounds above Flagler, and then we drop to fish, to number of fish, rather than pounds. We've got a conversion table there, and you could roughly approximate some of these, and is anybody opposed if we change that to -- Instead of fifty fish, it's 500 pounds of fish, and seventy-five would be 700 pounds, and 100 is 900, and 125 would be 1,100, and 150 would be 1,300, and 175 would be 1,500, and would anybody be opposed if we changed those?

MR. SAPP: The concern is, if you happen across a group of bigger fish, you can get shut down way before that seventy-five fish deal, and it's just a good fortune moment.

MR. HAYMANS: So the exact same argument is made on the other side, that you have a whole lot of small fish that count for the number, and then you wind up throwing small fish back when you wind up with big fish, and so which side do you go on? I mean, I have been told that you're not counting a whole lot of fish. When the fish get to the fish house is when they are eventually weighed-out. Any other?

MR. LAKS: The only thing I could say is I don't know, and I would probably trust some of my fellow fishermen in the audience, but I would say that fifty-fish number and average weight, that's a year-round average and not a Season 2 average. I would say that the fish are probably smaller in Season 2, and I think you're reading a year-round average of the fish, and our Season 1 average is much higher, and so that's something to consider in this.

MR. HAYMANS: If the fish are smaller in Season 2, wouldn't it behoove you to have a higher weight then, rather than fifty small fish?

MR. LAKS: I think that's something the fishermen are going to have to flesh out, because, if you start catching a lot of small heads and a higher weight limit, there's concerns about that, but I think that's something that the AP and king fishermen are going to have to meet and decide where they want that number, ultimately, in Season 2.

MR. CONKLIN: In snapper grouper, we are on a lot of poundage trip limits, and so it's regulatorily burdensome to have to try and guess how many -- I mean, it takes a little time, and my guys still aren't perfect at it, and no one else in the fishery is either. I mean, without being able to count fish, it puts more of a burden and risk of somebody getting in trouble, and so, with counting the fish, there's no messing up. In trying to guess pounds, there is.

MR. HAYMANS: That argument would hold water if we didn't have a 3,500-pound trip limit in the other zones, right?

MR. CONKLIN: Well, fifty fish isn't 3,500 pounds. It's probably harder to guesstimate 3,500 than fifty fish, but it doesn't sound like it's what the fishermen want. Thanks, and I'm not on your committee, but I just foresee it getting people in trouble.

MR. HAYMANS: That's fine. I just heard a comment, even at the March meeting, about going to pounds rather than fish, but that's fine. We can keep it at that. Okay, and so we have four alternatives here, and, first of all, is everybody okay with the way the action is worded, to modify the commercial trip limit for Atlantic king mackerel in the Atlantic Southern Zone? Okay. Then we have four alternatives of no action, and we have a fifty-fish that -- Alternative 2 is seventy-five to 100 if it's less than 70 percent, and then it's 100 to 150, and then 150 to 175.

MR. BELL: I am totally uncomfortable with picking one, just given that this fishery seems to be very sensitive to market stuff.

MR. HAYMANS: Yes, and so we're not picking preferreds. This is going to September, and we're going to see it again.

MR. BELL: We're just suggesting, but what I would ask, while we've got people here, is, is there an alternative, or one of these, that is better suited for the market, to avoid what we just kind of went through previously, and is one of those better?

MR. LAKS: Again, I have heard from the fishermen and from the AP, and there is different opinions, and I wouldn't want to state one opinion over another right now. There needs to be a discussion of whether -- I have heard support for a poundage limit, since everywhere from Texas to North Carolina, except for this area, is on a poundage limit, and I have also heard support to keep it at a number limit, but I couldn't tell you what was preferred, and I don't think we're really had a thorough discussion on it.

MR. HAYMANS: How about the number?

MR. LAKS: The number of fish?

MR. HAYMANS: Fifty or seventy-five or 100 or 150?

MR. LAKS: I have heard anywhere from seventy-five to 1,250 pounds to -- You get different opinions from different fishermen, and, without having this come up where people can comment on it, I don't know if we're going to get a full range of opinions, and I don't want to just give my opinion.

Mackerel Cobia Committee
June 13, 2019
Stuart, FL

MR. BELL: Right, and I wasn't trying to be premature in that, but it's just that, with the range of alternatives, we might hit it in there somewhere?

MR. LAKS: I think we have enough to get a good discussion going.

MR. HAYMANS: We go beyond the 1,200, which was the maximum we've heard, and so we've got a full range, and staff can give us a nice rundown on that when we get to September. No one has any desire to add anything else?

MR. GRINER: One more question for Ira. Did anybody have a sense of, if you had reached that upper limit in any of those alternatives, where you thought the market price would start dropping down?

MR. LAKS: Yes, there are people on the AP who are concerned with that, and I have heard that from other fishermen, and it's threading a needle. It's a fine line of where do you get diminished returns. It's something that the fishermen need to have more of a conversation with this council about.

MR. GRINER: Do you think we have those ranges covered, or should there be another alternative that is even bumped up a little higher, so that that discussion and those alternatives can be fleshed out?

MR. LAKS: I think we have the high end covered.

MR. GRINER: Thank you.

MR. CONKLIN: I am not on the committee, but thank you, and I do remember, in the past, where we had the trip limit too high, and the fellas came back and wanted us to step it down, because it was diluting the market or something like that, and so we do need to be careful.

MR. HAYMANS: Very good. Okay, and so there's no additional alternatives, and we need a motion for this, right?

MS. WIEGAND: We do.

MR. HAYMANS: All right, and so is there a motion to accept the actions and alternatives and to move this forward? There is the draft motion, if someone would care.

MR. BELL: I would be glad to. I move the approve the inclusion of Action 1, Alternatives 1 through 4, in CMP Framework Amendment 8.

MR. HAYMANS: Thank you, Mel, and we have a second by Spud. Any additional discussion? **Is there any objection? Seeing none, the motion carries.** All right. The final agenda item is a Spanish mackerel update and Christina.

MS. WIEGAND: All right, and so, at the last meeting, you guys had asked for an update on CMP Amendment 24, which is something you had discussed back in 2014, and I wanted to -- Very, very briefly, I included this history, mostly so you guys could read it as you were going over it, and it's

been a while since we've dealt with anything related to Spanish mackerel, and so I wanted to give you the very, very sort of bare-bones history of Spanish mackerel management and why we are where we are.

Management started back in the 1980s, and the original CMP FMP was done in 1983, and the big thing that happened here was Spanish mackerel was eventually divided into the Gulf and Atlantic migratory groups, and this is where the first allocation came into place, and, at the time, it was based on a series of landings between 1979 and 1980 something, and I don't remember the exact dates off the top of my head, but they were done based on ratio of catch in that time period.

Then, in the 1990s, this is when we extended our management jurisdiction up through the Mid-Atlantic, and there were some changes in qualifying criteria for the commercial Spanish mackerel permit, and then, in 1998, the allocations for Spanish mackerel were revised to a 50/50 split. I'm sorry. The 50/50 split was back in the 1980s, and it was revised to a 50/50 split because there was some qualitative information that recreational catch had been affected by increasing commercial effort and that Spanish mackerel had been overfished at that time, and that had also had a negative impact on the recreational effort, and it was decided, at the time, that, since both the commercial and the recreational sector had the capacity to harvest the entire ACL, that the most equitable way to do allocations was to do it as a blank 50/50 split.

Then, in 1998, May of 1998, through regulatory action, it was revised, because commercial effort had been increasing, while the recreational sector hadn't been catching their quota, and so it was revised to a 55/45 split, which is where it currently is today, and just a note that back in the 1990s and early 2000s was when the council was still doing seasonal framework adjustments, and so trip limits and catch limits were regularly changed throughout this time period.

Then, in 2000, that's where you really saw commercial Spanish mackerel harvest take off, and the fishing season was modified from March 1 to the end of February, and then, in 2010, that's when we got into the annual catch limits and accountability measures. This is also when we started managing Spanish mackerel as separate Northern and Southern Zones and started the adjusted trip limits that we have in place in the Southern Zone now, where, as a certain amount of the quota gets caught, the trip limit steps down and steps down until the entire quota has been caught.

Back in 2014 is when the council began work on Amendment 24, and this was, again, meant to address this issue where commercial harvest was increasing and regularly exceeding their ACL, whereas the recreational sector was continuing to land less and less, lower proportions, of their ACL, and several management measures were considered. There was talk of permanent reallocation, through a plan amendment, and there was also discussion of an in-season ACL shift, where the shift would occur through a closed framework procedure, and so a notice would just be published by the Regional Administrator, similar to the way we do in-season actions now, and then, at the end of the fishing year, the ACL would revert back to the permanent allocations that are in place, in this case 55 commercial and 45 recreational.

Pre-season ACL shifts were also considered, and this would be done through a modification to the framework procedure that would allow the shift to occur via the open framework process, and so staff would do the biological, social, and economic analysis, and then a notice would be published with the revised recreational and commercial ACLs before the season, and they would then revert back to the permanent allocations, unless another amendment was pushed through by the council,

and so this is what was being considered at the time, and work on this amendment was delayed in 2014, because of other priorities, namely the visioning process, and it was thought that we would get through visioning before considering picking back up these issues in the Spanish mackerel fishery.

This is where you guys stood back in 2014, and you've heard the recommendations from the advisory panel and what they would like to see. Just a few quick things to consider are the commercial Spanish mackerel landings have exceeded their ACL in six of the last ten years, and this is a joint plan with the Gulf Council, as you guys have already talked about, and so any changes to permits would require the Gulf approval, and it's also important to keep in mind that, right now, the commercial Spanish mackerel permit is just one permit that covers both the Gulf and the South Atlantic, and they don't have separate permits right now. This graph just shows the Northern and Southern Zone landings, and so you can see that both the Northern Zone and the Southern Zone have come close to meeting or exceeding their ACL in recent years.

MR. HAYMANS: I have a question for General Counsel, to start with. We really got into this in March, and can we go back to March, to have a control date in March, or do we have to set it today, or can you go back even further, because I think, as we move into this discussion of what could wind up being limited entry, we need to have a recent control date in place.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: That's a good one to spring on me. Control dates are a date in time that you tell the public that, going forward in the future, from this date forward, the Fisheries Service and the council might set up some sort of requirement that you couldn't -- That might exclude you from future participation in a fishery, right, and so what would be your rationale for setting it up in March? Let's talk about that.

MS. BECKWITH: Well, if we use some recent history, when we discussed the limited entry for the charter, we first discussed it at one meeting, and we tabled that discussion and brought it up at the next meeting, and so, if memory serves, I think we set the control date for that previous meeting, to avoid speculation, but I am seeing you --

MR. HAYMANS: That was actually my motion, and it was that current meeting that we set it at, because we talked about it in March, but we set it for June, but, learning from that -- That was part of the question that I had. This issue was first opened, at least in recent history, at the March meeting, with regard to limited entry and/or a gillnet endorsement, and so that's why I was thinking maybe if we could -- There was a suggestion, somewhere I read, to go back five years, and I know that can't fly, but I didn't know if March could or not.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Well, this is just June, and so I think you probably could use March as your date. You would want to give justification for why that's so, and you may never use that date, and that's the other thing. It's just kind of a yellow flag or a whatever to let people know that there's date out there that you should be aware of before you get into the fishery as a new entrant, or you could set eligibility criteria that could even go back farther than that, and so it's just kind of a notice up the flagpole to people to pay attention to this particular fishery and these dates.

MR. HAYMANS: Thank you. Chris.

MR. CONKLIN: I am not on the committee, but I appreciate you letting me talk. Is there like maybe an easier way to get to what we want to accomplish without -- I do agree with setting a control date, but, a lot of times, that will make a lot of people go out and get the open-access permit, and we would have to work with the Gulf, I would assume, on this as well, and it could be different, and I heard some other fishermen maybe came up with some different ideas that might get us where we need to be without doing this.

MR. HAYMANS: Where we're going on this is we don't have enough time today, or at this meeting, to begin this discussion, and so the thought is to ask you guys what you felt about having staff develop a white paper or something along that line, but, now that the box is opened, we sort of need to set a control date, and, if you guys want to set it for today, that's fine, but, if we go beyond today, we very well may have a lot of people jumping in.

MR. CONKLIN: Since it's a dual-region permit, then will we need to agree on a control date with the Gulf?

MR. HAYMANS: Again, I think that control date is -- We're looking at those folks that are in the Atlantic who are buying a permit, although it is a permit for both sides, and it still will be, unless we change that in the future.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I guess I'm -- We're setting a control date for what? Are we setting it for a limited entry on the gillnet fishery or a limited entry on Spanish mackerel? I feel like we're putting the cart before the horse, because you're right that we haven't had this discussion, and I'm just a little concerned.

MR. HAYMANS: The complicating factor is the fact that it's a joint permit, right, and so it may wind up being that it's a control date for a gillnet endorsement, which I guess is not there right now, right, in the federal waters. I looked at it more along the lines that it was a control date for a Spanish mackerel permit, if we go limited entry, but Christina would like to clarify.

MS. WIEGAND: Just as we're having this discussion between limited entry for the full commercial Spanish mackerel permit and a possible gillnet endorsement, for the full, if we wanted to do limited entry or limited access for the full commercial Spanish mackerel permit, that requires Gulf approval, because that also involves -- Then that permit covers their fishermen as well. For the gillnet endorsement, it would still require the Gulf's approval, because it would be a full plan amendment, but I believe, and Monica can correct me if I'm wrong, we can have a gillnet endorsement just for the Southern Zone. I believe the Gulf has a limited-access gillnet permit for their Southern Zone for king mackerel, and so we could do that just for our fishermen, and it would still require Gulf approval, but it wouldn't affect their fishermen.

MR. HAYMANS: That's what I heard, at least last night and in March, was that it was the gillnets that is the issue.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I am not convinced that I want to put a control date in place to suggest that we're going to start limited entry in the entire Spanish mackerel fishery. I'm not there yet. I could possibly get onboard with a control date for a limited entry gillnet endorsement for that zone, and I just wanted to put my opinion out there. By no means am I suggesting that we're starting limited

entry. You know my stance, at least in some sectors, of limited entry, but, because this discussion has begun, I think it's important that we have that there.

MR. CONKLIN: The talks of a gillnet gear endorsement, what would be the criteria? I am just thinking, and would it just be the State of Florida, like if you had the gillnet license and the Spanish mackerel permit?

MR. HAYMANS: I think we're way too early to even begin to address that.

MR. CONKLIN: That was just to help my way of thinking, and that's something I would need to know, because, if we're talking about the whole Southern Zone, that's a couple other states affected, and you understand what I'm saying.

MS. WIEGAND: The way the motion is written is the Southern Zone, which is South Carolina, Georgia, and Florida, but my understanding, from comment from the AP, as well as public comment last night, is that the big concern is off of Florida, and how a gillnet endorsement would work is something that staff can work out and bring something to you guys to look at, if you're interested in looking at that direction.

MS. BECKWITH: I agree that we have to set a control date, and it's not that we need to use it, and we certainly have the power to change it later to a future date, but the fact that we have said those two magical words of "limited entry" requires us to set a control date, in order to avoid speculation of those open-access permits, and so I think it's -- I can be persuaded to set the control date for this meeting, and I would probably do it for the March meeting, when we first started to discuss it, but I certainly see that one is necessary, and, if we want to change it later, we certainly can update it, but I think we need to put a line in the sand, now that we have said those two words.

DR. MCGOVERN: I had a question for Martha. I was wondering if, in the Gulf, they had discussed having a limited-entry permit at all for Spanish.

MS. GUYAS: I think this did come up a couple of years ago, and I believe the South Atlantic has already sent a letter to the Gulf about this, maybe like two years ago or something, and I don't remember the exact discussion, but I don't think that it really went anywhere, because here we are again.

MR. CONKLIN: The reason why I was asking about the gillnet endorsement or whatever is that, if we're not setting a control date on the Spanish mackerel permit, if you have one or not, then what are you setting a control date on? Then it would need to be if you had the State of Florida gillnet license and the -- Which I don't even know if you have a gillnet license, but do you understand what I'm saying? Otherwise, we don't have anything to set a control date on. You can't set a control date on something that's not in place, can you?

MS. MCCAWLEY: We do not have a State of Florida gillnet license, and let me also say that -- A couple of things. I feel like this discussion is a little bit premature. I mean, we're talking about a control date, but we haven't actually agreed that we want to continue a discussion about this at a future meeting. Maybe we should back up and start there. I do agree that, yes, if we want to go there, we need to set a control date, and then, if we agree that we're going there, I am fine backing

it up to March, but I don't know that this committee has agreed that this is where we're stepping forward.

MR. HAYMANS: We will ask that question in just a moment.

MR. WOODWARD: I think I gleaned out of this somewhat convoluted discussion that's going on that we're interested in what it would take to implement a gear endorsement and what the criteria would be, and so has staff been given direction to prepare us a white paper or an options paper? If not, I will be glad to request that.

MR. HAYMANS: That's the next step, and I have breached the control date discussion, and perhaps it was a bit premature, but, to me, they go hand-in-hand, but, Spud, if you have a motion.

MR. WOODWARD: I would move that we -- I guess "implement" is perhaps not the right word, because I'm not ready to implement, but to request that staff prepare us a white paper on a gillnet endorsement in the Spanish mackerel fishery, commercial Spanish mackerel fishery, in the Southern Zone and possible qualifying criteria for discussion at the next meeting of the Mackerel Committee.

MR. HAYMANS: Anything about the permit itself?

MR. WOODWARD: I think that's sort of embedded into the discussion of the gillnet endorsement, of how does all that merge together.

MR. HAYMANS: I think staff would prefer -- I don't want to put words in their mouths, but, if we're going to consider limited entry on a Spanish mackerel permit, that that's in the motion, if you want that as part of the white paper.

MR. WOODWARD: Sure, and I will add that to the motion, to investigate a gillnet endorsement pursuant to further consideration of limited entry, or limited access, in the commercial Spanish mackerel fishery.

MS. WIEGAND: Are you looking to have a white paper that looks at limited entry for the full commercial Spanish mackerel fishery and for the gillnet endorsement?

MR. WOODWARD: I am hesitant to do that. I mean, I think the gillnet endorsement is the thing we want to look at, and it be examined as a necessary precursor to a further discussion of controlled access in the fishery.

MS. WIEGAND: Are we good with this as written for the white paper?

MR. HAYMANS: There is some discussion that you can't -- Say that again?

MR. LAKS: There was discussion, I believe a couple of years ago, at the AP that you needed to make the permit limited entry in order to have an endorsement on it, and I'm not sure if that's true, and I don't remember how the discussion turned out, but that was brought up, and my memory doesn't serve me -- Someone mentioned the fact that you can't put an endorsement on an open-access permit.

MS. WIEGAND: I will have to look at Monica for that. Can we put a limited-access endorsement on an open-access permit?

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Then it wouldn't be an open-access kind of situation anymore, and it would be limited access. You could create something called, for example, a Spanish mackerel gillnet permit that was of a limited nature. I mean, there's a variety of things you can do. When you talk about an endorsement, you're usually endorsing something, which is a permit, and I guess you could have an open access, which is what you have now, of the gillnet fishery, but it's just not specific to the gillnet fishery, and it's just an open-access Spanish mackerel permit, and some people use gillnets.

MS. BECKWITH: I just wanted clarification, so I don't get any calls from any of our charter people, and I know it is implied, but can you please add in "commercial Spanish mackerel fishery"? **Just put in the "commercial".** Thank you.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay. Have you got that, Spud?

MR. WOODWARD: Now I am rethinking the whole thing. Now I am just thinking maybe that the request of staff is to investigate the various options for controlling effort in the commercial Spanish mackerel gillnet fishery, because that's really what we're talking about, is what's the best mechanism. If you feel like there is -- We have heard comments about this, that there is increasing capacity and overcapacity in that fishery. I would just leave it wide open to look at all possible options that are out there, so that we have those before us to consider.

MR. HAYMANS: Are you good with that, Spud, that motion as-is? Would you read it, please?

MR. WOODWARD: Direct staff to prepare a white paper on controlling effort in the commercial Spanish mackerel fishery.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay. Is there a second from a committee member? Mel. Thank you. Okay. Is there additional discussion?

MR. GRINER: I am not sure that I understand exactly what you mean by a white paper on controlling effort. To me, what you're asking for is a white paper possibly showing commercial landings by state, by month, by gear type, and is that what you're asking for? I mean, that's the only place you could possibly start.

MR. HAYMANS: What I can see staff doing is taking the AP's request and all of the public comments that we've had about lots of people jumping into this fishery recently and addressing those assertions. Is there truth to the fact that there is lots more boats in it, and do we see lots more increased landings from gillnets? Then, if that is proven, what are the options that we can address? Is it limiting the permit, or is it creating an endorsement? What are the things that we can look at? Then we can decide whether we want to move forward or not. That is the way I see that.

MR. GRINER: To that point, then that's exactly it, and I just wanted to clarify that a little bit more, maybe for Christina, that that's what we need to see then, is all zones broken down by the zones, by months, total catches, numbers of permits in those zones, and what gear they are using.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay. Jessica, did you have something?

MS. MCCAWLEY: Yes, and so I really feel like, tied up in this whole problem, is the state regulations. I don't know if that's going to get analyzed as part of this, and let me just throw out there that I have looked at confidential landings on this, and I don't know if I can support this motion.

MR. HAYMANS: I think state absolutely has to be part of that, and Christina is going to speak to that.

MS. WIEGAND: I would say, if the committee's intent is -- I have got a list going here of some of the ideas that you've discussed, and you mentioned the AP motions, and part of the AP's motion was to look at ways the council could collaborate with the states or work with the states on Spanish mackerel management, and so something that could be included in this white paper is information on what's currently going on in the State of North Carolina and the State of Florida to help with this particular problem, so that you guys have all of that information in front of you when you're discussing this next time.

DR. MCGOVERN: With regard to the states being involved, there is complementary management with the Atlantic States Commission and the South Atlantic Board, and they have an omnibus amendment that includes Spanish mackerel, along with spot and speckled trout, and so that's a player in all of this.

MR. CONKLIN: Just from outside looking in, and I've talked to these fishermen this week, and they have said that it seems the majority of the fishery takes place within state waters, but they are fishermen that hold federal permits, and so they have to report their catch on federal reporting either way, and do you understand?

Maybe a way, if FWC could wrap its head around how to handle the Florida problem, the gillnet effort, is wrap it around and they issue however many people they want to let go gillnetting with the federal permit, and then we don't have to do a joint amendment with the Gulf. I know it's completely against your legislation, and just listen for one second now, all right? Then we wouldn't have to have a joint amendment with the Gulf or anything else, and central Florida can fix this problem on its own, and we don't have to do anything. We don't have to do anything.

MR. HAYMANS: I can't say that I disagree.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Can I please respond to that? I don't know -- Let me just try to just state the basic thing. The gillnets are occurring in federal waters. Since there is a federal fishery management plan, FWC cannot affect gillnets in federal waters.

MR. CONKLIN: The federal fishery is occurring there, but a lot of those nets are floating in your state waters.

MS. MCCAWLEY: They are not gillnetting in state waters. It is illegal.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay. Thus, the reason that --

MR. CONKLIN: Hey, I tried.

MR. HAYMANS: Thus, the reason we need the white paper, to inform the entire committee on what all the facts are. We have a motion to direct staff to prepare a white paper on controlling effort in the commercial Spanish mackerel fishery, and I think you've got a list of things to include, right?

MS. WIEGAND: I do.

MR. HAYMANS: All right. Steve, last word before we take a vote on the motion.

MR. POLAND: Thanks, Doug, and I doubt this will be the last word on this, but so I want to make sure, in this white paper, that there is a breakdown, especially in the Northern Zone, of landings from state and federal waters and landings that come from permitted trips and state-licensed, non-permitted trips, to get that breakdown.

MR. HAYMANS: Jessica, I'll give you the last word. I am just kidding.

MS. MCCAWLEY: It's just not clear to me -- This is presuming that there is a problem with effort in this fishery, and so I'm not -- Is this paper going to look to determine if that's even a problem, because I'm not convinced that it's even a problem, and this is presuming that there is a problem.

MR. HAYMANS: I'm the Chair, and I can't offer a friendly amendment. Let's see. To the motion maker, can you fix it?

MR. WOODWARD: I will change my motion to say to direct staff to prepare a white paper on the necessity of controlling effort in the commercial Spanish mackerel fishery, especially the gillnet fishery, if that helps the comfort level and focused the staff effort in a direction that will yield a positive result.

MR. HAYMANS: Is that okay with the seconder, although it's the committee's motion? Mel, are you good with that?

MR. BELL: (Mr. Bell's comment is not audible on the recording.)

MR. HAYMANS: Okay.

MR. GRINER: I would rather see it say something like "analyzing effort", instead of "necessity of controlling effort". I mean, what we really need to do is just like she said. We need to analyze this and see if there's even a need to even look at effort.

MR. HAYMANS: That's sort of saying whether there is a necessity for controlling it or not, and that's saying the same thing, and so we're trying to get a little crafty here, and I'm trying to be responsive to our time. I think that we have a good understanding of what -- You have a good understanding of what you need in this paper, right?

MS. WIEGAND: Yes.

Mackerel Cobia Committee June 13, 2019 Stuart, FL

MR. HAYMANS: Okay. Unless there is an absolutely burning new statement that we haven't heard yet, and Chris has got one.

MR. CONKLIN: To that, if we have a sector of the region that is closing down early on the commercial side, then there is an effort issue, and you have an open-access permit, and it can't stand any more fishermen, and this will shake out whether it can or it cannot. For the record, I want to stand corrected that the fishermen that I talked to from Florida were not floating gillnets in the water. They were hook-and-line fishermen in state waters, but they still had to report federally, and that was my misconception.

MR. HAYMANS: Very well. Okay. To reiterate, Steve, Anna, Mel, Jack, Tim, Jessica, Spud, Dewey, and Tony. All those in favor of the motion, seven; all those opposed. The motion carries seven in favor with two abstentions.

MR. BELL: It's implied in there, but, I mean, basically what we're asking for is a characterization of the fishery, a snapshot of the fishery, and examining if you might need to do that, and that's it.

MR. HAYMANS: Very good. Everybody just take a deep breath. There was no other business mentioned at the beginning of this, and so, with that, that concludes the business of the Mackerel Cobia Committee. I wish you had said that before --

MS. MCCAWLEY: Back to the Mackerel Committee.

MR. HAYMANS: That was me starting this meeting with a control date, and does anybody else feel like there needs to be a control date, as we've started this discussion?

MS. BECKWITH: Yes, I think there should be a control date, and so it's just a matter of if we want to set it for now or for March. I will make a motion to move to make the control date the date of the Mackerel Committee meeting from our last meeting, and so March whatever.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay, and so, basically, we're looking back to the March meeting in Jekyll, the date that this was first brought up. Is there a second to that? Second by Mel. Any additional discussion? **Any opposition? Seeing none, that motion is approved.** Is there anything else that I have missed? That concludes our business.

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned on June 13, 2019.)

Certified By: ______ Date: _____

Transcribed By: Amanda Thomas July 22, 2019

SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

2019 COUNCIL MEMBERS

Jessica McCawley, **Chair**

Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 2590 Executive Center Circle E. Suite 201 Tallahassee, FL 32301 (850)487-0554 (ph); (850)487-4847 (f) Jessica.mccawley@myfwc.com

Mel Bell, Vice Chair

SCDNR-Marine Resources Division P.O. Box 12559 217 Ft. Johnson Road Charleston, SC 29422 (843)953-9007 (ph); (843)953-9159 (fax) bellm@dnr.sc.gov

Robert Beal
Executive Director
Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission
1050 N. Highland St. Suite 200 A-N
Arlington, VA 22201
(703)842-0740 (ph); (703)842-0741 (f)
rbeal@asmfc.org

- √Anna Beckwith 1907 Paulette Road Morehead City, NC 28557 (252)671-3474 (ph) AnnaBarriosBeckwith@gmail.com
- ✓Chester Brewer 250 Australian Ave. South Suite 1400 West Palm Beach, FL 33408 (561)655-4777 (ph) wcbsafmc@gmail.com
- √Dr. Kyle Christiansen
 150 Cedar St.
 Richmond Hill, GA 31324
 (912)756-7560 (ph)
 christiansensafmc@gmail.com
- √Chris Conklin P.O. Box 972 Murrells Inlet, SC 29576 (843)543-3833 conklinsafmc@gmail.com

Dr. Roy Crabtree Regional Administrator NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region 263 13th Avenue South St. Petersburg, FL 33701 (727)824-5301 (ph); (727)824-5320 (f) roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

- √Tim Griner 4446 Woodlark Lane Charlotte, NC 28211 (980)722-0918 (ph) timgrinersafmc@gmail.com
- Doug Haymans
 Coastal Resources Division
 GA Dept. of Natural Resources
 One Conservation Way Suite 300
 Brunswick, GA 31520
 (912)264-7218 (ph); (912)262-2318 (f)
 haymanssafmc@gmail.com

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Representative TBD

- ✓LCDR Jeremy Montes
 U.S. Coast Guard
 909 SE 1st Ave.
 Miami, FL 33131
 (305)415-6788(ph); (305)710-4569(c)
 Jeremy.J.Montes@uscg.mil
- ✓ Stephen Poland
 NC Division of Marine Fisheries
 PO Box 769
 3441 Arendell Street
 Morehead City, NC 28557
 (252)808-8011 (direct); (252)726-7021 (main)
 Steve.Poland@ncdenr.gov
- ✓Art Sapp 2270 NE 25th St. Lighthouse Pointe, FL 33064 (954)444-0820 (ph) artsappsafmc@gmail.com

SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL **2019 COUNCIL MEMBERS continued**

Deirdre Warner-Kramer Office of Marine Conservation OES/OMC 2201 C Street, N.W. Department of State, Room 5806 Washington, DC 20520 (202)647-3228 (ph) Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

David Whitaker 720 Tennent Street Charleston, SC 29412 (843)953-9392 david.whitakersafmc@gmail.com

Spud Woodward 860 Buck Swamp Road Brunswick, GA 31523 (912)258-8970 (ph) swoodwardsafmc@gmail.com

Dency Hemilright

Tony DiLernia

Martha Guyas

Rick Devictor

Monica Smit Brunello

Dr. Jack McGovern

Dr. Clay Porch

Kate Siegfried

Dr. Wilson Lancy

Shop Grimes

Erika Burgess

SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

COUNCIL STAFF

Executive Director

✓Gregg T. Waugh gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Deputy Director - Science & Statistics

John Carmichael john.carmichael@safmc.net

Deputy Director - Management

✓ Dr. Brian Cheuvront brian.cheuvront@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

✓ Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

Citizen Science Program Manager

Julia Byrd julia.byrd@safmc.net

Admin. Secretary/Travel Coordinator

Cindy Chaya cindy.chaya@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Dr. Chip Collier chip.collier@safmc.net

Purchasing & Grants

✓ Cierra Graham cierra.graham@safmc.net

Fishery Biologist

✓ Dr. Mike Errigo mike.errigo@safmc.net

Fishery Economist

✓ John Hadley john.hadley@safmc.net

Public Information Officer

✓Kim Iverson
kim.iverson@safmc.net

Administrative Officer

✓ Kelly Klasnick kelly.klasnick@safmc.net Senior Fishery Biologist

Roger Pugliese roger.pugliese@safmc.net

Outreach Specialist

✓ Cameron Rhodes cameron.rhodes@safmc.net

Staff Accountant

Suzanna Thomas suzanna.thomas@safmc.net

Fisheries Social Scientist

✓Christina Wiegand christina.wiegand@safmc.net

SEDAR Coordinators

Dr. Julie Neer julie.neer@safmc.net

Kathleen Howington kathleen.howington@safmc.net

1 BeBe Harrison

SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

2019 COMMITTEE MEMBERS continued

HIGHLY MIGRATORY SPECIES

Anna Beckwith

Art Sapp

Chester Brewer

Kyle Christiansen

Tim Griner

Jeremy Montes

Steve Poland

David Whittaker

Staff contact: John Hadley

INFORMATION & EDUCATION

Spud Woodward

Art Sapp

Anna Beckwith

Chester Brewer

Doug Haymans

Jeremy Montes

David Whittaker

Staff contact: Cameron Rhodes

LAW ENFORCEMENT

Mel Bell

Anna Beckwith

Kyle Christiansen

Jeremy Montes

Art Sapp

Spud Woodward

Staff contact: Myra Brouwer

MACKEREL COBIA

- ✓ Doug Haymans
- Steve Poland Robert Beal
- ✓ Mel Bell
 - Roy Crabtree
- ✓ Tim Griner
- Jessica McCawley
- ✓Spud Woodward
- ✓ Dewey Hemilright Rob O'Reilly
- ✓ Mid-Atlantic Liaison: Tony DiLernia
- ✓ Staff contact: Christina Wiegand

PERSONNEL

Chester Brewer

Mel Bell

Doug Haymans

Jessica McCawley

Steve Poland

Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

PROTECTED RESOURCES

Spud Woodward

Steve Poland

Robert Beal

Mel Bell

Jessica McCawley

Jeremy Montes

Staff contact: Christina Wiegand

SSC SELECTION

Anna Beckwith

Chris Conklin

Roy Crabtree

Art Sapp

Spud Woodward

Staff contact: John Carmichael

SEDAR

Jesscia McCawley

Mel Bell

Robert Beal

Roy Crabtree

Tim Griner

Doug Haymans

Steve Poland

Staff contact: John Carmichael

SHRIMP

Mel Bell

Steve Poland

Chris Conklin

Doug Haymans

Jessica McCawley

Jeremy Montes

Roy Crabtree

David Whittaker

Spud Woodward

Staff contact: Chip Collier